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1 I am asking you to clarify a first question regarding point 2 of the 

Tender Specifications. “The scale of the pilot should be one or various 
River Basin Districts, preferably integrated in the same trans-boundary 
catchment.” 
Our understanding is that:  
a) “one or various River Basin Districts” is the requested scale (e.g. 

pilots at sub-RBDs scale would not be accepted);  
b) It is recommended to work in “ trans-boundary catchment[s]” if 

added value is given to the project (and justified as such for Award 
Criteria 2 and 3); and  

c) It is recommended to work “in the same trans-boundary catchment” 
in case of working in more than one RBDs. 

According to the published Call for Proposals, Section 2 
Objective(s) – Theme(s) – Priorities, the last paragraph: “The 
scale of the pilot should be one or various River Basin 
Districts (RBDs), preferably integrated in the same trans-
boundary catchment. Therefore, 
a) We confirm your interpretation that the scale of the pilot 

project should be one or various RBDs.  
b) We confirm your interpretation that preferably integrated 

in the same trans-boundary catchment, means that it is 
recommended to work in the trans-boundary 
catchment(s).  

c) We confirm your interpretation that it is recommended to 
work in the trans-boundary catchment(s) if the scale of the 
pilot is more than one RBD.   

2 I have a few questions about the new Call for proposals ‘Preparatory 
Action on development of prevention activities to halt desertification 
in Europe’ (deadline 15 June 2013): 
• How many projects receive funding and how many proposals are 

expected (experience previous calls)? 
• Do the Dutch drought issues have a chance against desertification 

in, for instance, Spain? 
• To what extent you advise to propose Dutch projects?  
 

According to the published Call for Proposals, Section 4. 
Budget available: 
• The Commission expects to fund 5-6 proposals. It is 

difficult to predict the number of proposals to be received, 
however, in the past and for similar Calls, we received 20 
applications in 2010 and 8 applications in 2011.  

• A project proposal has to comply with the Call for 
Proposals objectives, as specified in Section 2. 
Objective(s) – Theme(s) – Priorities. Bearing this in mind, 
the Commission believes that a project from the 
Netherlands could fulfil the eligibility criteria, as some 
areas are facing water scarcity or droughts issues, in 
particular in a climate change context. 

• The Commission advises all RBDs that are eligible under 
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this Call for Proposals to be involved in the relevant pilot 
initiatives that could be potentially funded through this 
Call for Proposals. It is in the interest of the Commission 
to diversify the support and to receive quality proposals 
without favouring one or another Member States. 

3 Is Republic of Moldova eligible? According to the published Call for Proposals, Part 6.1. 
Eligible applicants: 
• The main applicant from the Republic of Moldova is not 

eligible. However, a partner organisation and/or associates 
from the Republic of Moldova are eligible, where this 
would serve the objectives of the pilot initiative(s) 
concerned. 

 
4 1) Are investment costs eligible? 

2) Is an investment project eligible or should a project always be aimed 
at gathering and dissemination of knowledge and/or communication? 
3) In the proposal several financeable activities are mentioned. Can 
you give an explanation and/or examples of cooperation projects? 
 

1) According to the published Call for Proposals, Section 
11.3. Eligible costs, if you refer to an equipment that is 
needed for the implementation of the proposed action, 
only the portion of the equipment's depreciation 
corresponding to the duration of the action/project and the 
rate of actual use for the purposes of the action may be 
considered eligible by the Commission. 

2) An investment project is not eligible, as it would not 
comply with the objectives of the Call, as specified in 
Section 2. Objective(s) – Theme(s) – Priorities. 

3) In the context of this Call for Proposals, a cooperation 
project could be a project that is implemented by more 
than 1 organisation and the scale of the project is more 
than 1 River Basin District, preferably in the same trans-
boundary catchment. As stated in the published Call for 
Proposals, Section 1. Introduction, we advise you to 
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consult the following website 
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/water/blueprint/balances.
htm, where you can find information on the projects that 
have been awarded within the last Call for Proposals.  

5 In the Guidelines on page 4 is stated that the total budget earmarked 
for the co-financing of projects is estimated at 750,000 euros. The 
Commission expects to fund 5-6 proposals. Does the latter mean that 
the budget of a proposal should not exceed about 150.00 euros per 
proposal? 

According to the published Call for Proposals, Part 4. Budget 
available, the maximum EU co-financing rate under this 
Call for Proposals is 75% of the eligible costs per proposal 
based on the project's budget. Consequently, the budget of a 
proposal can exceed 150,000 EUR; however, if the proposal 
is finally selected for an award, the EU co-financing will not 
exceed 75% of the eligible costs. The information about the 
number of proposals expected to be funded is indicative.  

6 On one hand it is mentioned in the proposal: 
The general objective of the Call for proposals is to obtain detailed 
information on the water resources available in the selected pilot basins 
and to demonstrate the potential of management, technological and 
economic measures for improving water management with a view to 
halting desertification in Europe and decreasing vulnerability to water 
scarcity and droughts. The pilot initiatives should supplement the on-
going projects on tackling water scarcity, droughts and desertification 
by focusing on complementing EU water resource balances elaborated 
in the framework of the System of Economic and Environmental 
Accounts for Water (SEEAW) with local data, as well as identifying 
management, technological and economic measures allowing the 
setting up of optimal water management in the pilot river basins 
In order to be eligible, the proposal: 
− Has to mention the river basin system(s) (or parts hereof, e.g. sub-

catchment area) affected by drought and water scarcity in an EU 
Member State in which they will take place. The concerned river 

The Commission does not share your view that the objectives 
of the published Call for Proposals, Section 2 Objective(s) – 
Theme(s) – Priorities are conflicting with the preference 
given to River Basin Districts in the same trans-boundary 
catchment. As per Section 1. Introduction – Background of 
the published Call for Proposals, we strongly advise you to 
consult the Policy Review for water scarcity and droughts, 
and the studies that were the basis for the review, which 
conclude that water scarcity and droughts are recognized as 
relevant issues by River Basin Management Plans across the 
EU and almost all RBDs are facing or could be facing water 
scarcity or droughts issues.  

http://ec.europa.eu/environment/water/blueprint/balances.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/environment/water/blueprint/balances.htm
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basin system(s) could be situated in the territory of more than one 
country. 

− Shall fall under the scope of this call and concern one of the 
countries affected by desertification under the United Nations 
Convention to Combat Desertification (UNCCD); 

 
The above clearly demonstrate that the pilot areas should be affected 
by Water Scarcity & Droughts ( WS&D) and be in a country affected 
by desertification under the UNCCD. 
 
On the other hand it is mentioned in the proposal: 
The scale of the pilot should be one or various River Basin Districts, 
preferably integrated in the same trans-boundary catchment. 
 
These preferences are a bit conflicting: in the first case it is clearly 
mentioned that the pilot river basin systems should be affected by 
WS&D and concern UNCCD identified countries, while in the second 
case preference is given in the trans-boundary catchments, i.e. 
transboundary rivers like Danube, Rhine, etc. where WS&D is usually 
not an issue. What should thus be the priority? Water scarce basins or 
transboundary ones? 

7 Is it possible to participate in several proposals with different basins 
(different territorial institutional assets, natural conditions and 
hydrological/hydraulic characteristics)? 

According to the published Call for Proposals, Part 11. 
Financial provisions, 11.1. General Principles: 
a) Non-cumulative award 

An action/project may only receive one grant from the EU 
budget.  
In no circumstances shall the same costs be financed twice 
by the Union budget. To ensure this, applicants shall 
indicate the sources and amounts of Union funding received 
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or applied for the same action or part of the action as well 
as any other funding received or applied for the same 
action. 

Bearing the above in mind, an eligible organisation could take 
a part in more than 1 proposal, however, for different actions.  

8 How many partners are necessary to cooperate for this call? 
Can we just denote one river basin or there have to be more and in 
different countries? 

In the Grand application form, in part III (INFORMATION ON THE 
ACTION FOR WHICH THE GRANT IS REQUESTED) for the 
details of the proposal, is any word limit for every sub-part 
a),b).......g). 

According to the published Call for Proposals, Part 6.1. 
Eligible applicants, applicants may act individually or with 
partner organisations and/or associates: 
• Applicants may associate with public (in particular the 

relevant River Basin Authority(ies) in the selected river 
basins(s)) or private bodies, actors and institutions, non-
governmental organisations, universities and/or research 
institutes of EU countries, candidate countries, western 
Balkan and European Neighbourhood Policy (ENP) 
countries as partner organisations, where this would serve 
the objectives of the pilot initiative (or pilot initiatives) 
concerned. 

• Applicants’ partner organisations participate in designing 
and implementing the pilot initiative (or pilot initiatives), 
and the costs they incur are eligible in the same way as 
those incurred by the grant beneficiary. 

There is no limit on the number of words in the Grant 
application, Part III, however, the application should be 
presented in a clear and concise manner. Furthermore, we 
advise you to consult our reply to question 1 in this table.  

9 a) Is there any word limitation or maximum length in any of the 
various parts of the proposal (methodology, CV, etc.), 

b) Is the proposal going to be submitted through an electronic 
submission platform and in this case, when this is going to be 

a) There is no limit on the number of words in the 
application form and its annexes, however, all information 
should be presented in a clear and concise manner. 

b) No. 
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available for editing the appropriate forms online? 

c) Which are the final forms that are required to be submitted in the 
case of a Higher Education Establishment? 

c) Like all other applicants, you should fill the forms: Annex 
A to Annex E to apply for this call. Regarding financial 
forms, Annex C – The financial capacity form F09 can 
only be filled by private applicants. 
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